GRAND RMET COUNTY
B e e ]

S T
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTSE FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, March 22, 2006
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Convention IL Approval of February 22, 2006 Minutes

" Arena

Authority IIL  Presentation by Grand Rapids Griffins — Robert Sack
Steven Heacock, IV Committee Reports
Chairman
Birgit Klohs a. Operations Committee
Clif Charles i. Committee Report
Gary Mclnerney . CVB Update
George Heartwell
losepiipmazEl b. Finance Committee
tew ChapRerlin i. Approval of SMG February 2006 Financial Statements -

DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

il. Approval of CAA February 2006 Financial Statements
and Disbursements

ii. Recommendation on Proposals to Provide
Financial Audit Services

V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

VI. Public Comment
VIL. Next Meeting Date — Wednesday, April 26, 2006

VIII. Adjournment

B

Van Andel Arena®

Action

Information

Information

Information

Action
Action

Action

Information

130 FuIIon'West DeVos Places®
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 303 Monroe Ave. NW
616.742. 6600 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233
Fax 616.742.6197 ‘ 2}2-;42.6500

= ax 742 .6590



Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, February 22, 2006

L Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded. Chairman Heacock added Diversity Initiative as

new agenda item VI.

Attendance
Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Birgit Klohs
Clif Charles
George Heartwell
Gary McInerney
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Lew Chamberlin
Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Robert Mihos Kent County
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Steve Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting
I Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. McInerney, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the Minutes of the January 235,

2006, meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

III. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee. The Operations Committee did not meet in February.

1. CVB Update

Mr. Wilson stated that DeVos Place® prevailed over four other venues competing for the Religious
Conference Management Association convention in 2009. The CVB is working on a variety of
conventions from environmental writers to the League of United Latin American Citizens. January was a
very busy month, as evidenced by a 16% increase in hotel tax revenues over January 2005.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 22, 2006 - 2

b. Finance Committee
1. SMG January 2006 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended January 31, 2006. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

i, CAA January 2006 Disbursements and Financial Statements

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Mclnerney, moved to approve the CAA Disbursements and
Financial Statements for the period ended January 31, 2006. After review and discussion, the motion
was unanimously adopted.

iii. CAA Audited Financial Statements

Ms. Klohs presented the audited financial statements with opinion by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the
years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. Ms. Klohs explained that the statements were delayed due to staff
changes at the City, County, and PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Finance Committee has reviewed the
audit and it is clean. The 2004 and 2005 audits should be completed by fall and the 2006 audit should be
completed by year’s end.

iv. Capital Outlay Report

Ms. Klohs presented an update on the capital outlay budget. Ms. Klohs acknowledged Grand Action for
its gift of $38,170 to reimburse the CAA for the glow-in-the-dark stair nosings in DeVos Performance
Hall. Grand Action will also contribute $90,000 towards the DeVos Performance Hall hearing loop
system.

IV. Report from Food Service Contacting Subcommittee

Mr. Tomaselli reported that the concession contact with Centerplate expires June 30, 2006 and the CAA
has engaged Bigelow Companies, Inc. to conduct an analysis of the current agreement and make
recommendations. Chairman Heacock set up a subcommittee including himself, Lew Chamberlin, Joe
Tomaselli, Richard Wendt, and Robert White to work with the principal consultant, Chris Bigelow. SMG
has expressed an interest in bidding on the contract and invited subcommittee members to observe its
Oklahoma City operations. Chairman Heacock also met with officials from Centerplate, who expressed a
keen interest in retaining the account and will provide a creative proposal in terms of capital. The
subcommittee will be meeting with Chris Bigelow in March and would like to have a recommendation for
the Board in April.

V. Chairman’s Comments

Chairman Heacock opened his 2006 annual report recounting the many diverse activities held at DeVos
Place® and the Van Andel Arena® during the past year. The Steelcase Ballroom was dedicated on
February 1, 2005; the Michigan Landscape Nursery Association brought 7,000 delegates to town and the
Wesleyan Church brought 3,000 BACK for a youth conference because their annual national conference
held here in 2004 went so well. Stock cars were racing in the exhibit halls at the same time that people
dined in the ballroom. More than 630,000 people passed through the turnstyles at the Van Andel Arena®
in 2005, enjoying such a wide range of events as MSU basketball, Disney of Ice, monster truck, rock
concerts, and graduation commencements.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 22, 2006 - 3

Mr. Heacock reported on the outcome of the 2005 initiatives, which included review of the booking
policy, long-term capital plan, CAA relationship with City and County, and CAA accessibility. For the
2006 initiatives, 2006 will be the Year of Customer Service. Key initiatives would include: 1) a focus on
exemplary customer service in each contract being renewed in 2006 (management, food service, security,
etc.); 2) study of potential marketing fund and/or formal relationship with CVB; 3) review of governance
and administration of CAA; 4) helping the City and private interest assure the future of the public
museum; 5) examine regional impact/possible collaborations; and 6) getting art up in the convention
center.

VL Diversity Initiative

Mr. Charles presented an update on the diversity initiative that he, Chairman Heacock, and Rich
MacKeigan worked on over the past year. They identified the two largest opportunities in terms of
population and entertainment possibilities were in the African-American and Hispanic communities. The
following goals were established:

1. Identify current programming at both facilities that would be viewed as “Diverse” or “Of Minority
Appeal”

2. Identify programming we are not currently getting at our venues and attempt to do so

e While we have seen African American plays in DeVos, there were more of them
playing in other markets that we felt we could have here as well. Tyler Perry was
identified as a perfect fit. Mr. MacKeigan worked his contacts to initiate a dialogue
with his representatives and he and his staff rolled out the red carpet for them during a
visit last summer. They were impressed enough to give Van Andel Arena® a chance
and we saw, by everyone’s account, one of the most entertaining and uplifting nights
since the Arena opened.

®  Gospel Singers were another area identified for expansion. Kirk Franklin, a well known
Gospel Singer, was identified. I am pleased to announce we will have Kirk Franklin and
Mary Mary at Van Andel Arena® on April 28. This event was largely due to the success
of the Tyler Perry show...it is true, success begets success.

e We have identified the Hispanic Market as the fastest growing market in West
Michigan. Additionally, Rich feels this is a market that is underserved relative to
entertainment, especially downtown. Rich has worked aggressively with promoters and
potential sponsors to create a bilingual or completely Hispanic performance of Disney
on Ice, Ringling Brothers, Barnum and Bailey Circus and/or World Toughest Rodeo
Bulls and Broncs. We have seen interest on behalf of all and plans are underway to
achieve this goal. In the interim, we have seen these promoters increase their awareness
of, and outreach to, the Hispanic Market. Disney on Ice this year will focus a “Family
Promotion” targeted exclusively at the Hispanic demo. Once proven, similar plans will
be put in place for the Circus next September and SMG will continue to lobby Feld (the
events’ promoter) for an all Hispanic show. Also, the Bulls and Broncs event has
printed 300 Spanish posters which will be part of a major multi-media effort in the
Hispanic market.

3. Increase the diversity of our workforce at both buildings

¢ SMG has encouraged our contracted partners to aggressively market in minority
targeted media in an effort to increase the minority representation of those working
events. We have already seen efforts in this area from a number of them and are pleased
with plans for further development.

e SMG will focus their efforts regarding full time hires to encourage a diversified
workforce. While there is some diversity currently, it is not representative of our
community at all levels.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 22, 2006 - 4

4. Reach out to leaders and “opinion formers” in the minority communities

* We have seen tremendous strides in this area. We have informally set up a relationship
with the Inter Denominational Ministerial Alliance (IDMA). We will look to formalize
this over the next twelve months, as well as grow this to include members of the African
American business community. The Reverend Nathaniel Moody deserves a great
amount of credit for providing leadership in this regard.

e SMG is finalizing plans to become a partner with the Hispanic Chamber of Commerce,
which will include DeVos Place’s hosting of the Chamber’s annual Showcase during
2006 and other cross promotional opportunities.

® SMG is getting more and more involved in the Grand Rapids Chamber of Commerce’s
Diversity program and will continue to do so.

5. Find a way (if possible) to track our progress with quantifiable results
* Rich has had a couple of meetings with Diversity Management Strategies, a company
that may be able to assess our current position and assist in strategies towards increased
diversity. They have provided a proposal, at our request, which we are in the process of
reviewing. Rich and Clif plan to meet with them over the next four weeks to assess
whether this is something we would recommend the CAA pursue.

VII. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented an update on the upcoming concerts and shows that will be held this season at
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena®. The Van Andel Arena® will play host to the U.S.
Synchronized Skating Championships, World’s Toughest Bulls & Broncs, Griffins hockey, Rampage
football, and monster trucks. The public show season continues over at DeVos Place® with the Home
and Garden Show and Sport, Fishing & RV Show yet to come, the annual Taste of Chamber, Addie
Awards, Grand Rapids Symphony, Joseph & the Amazing Technicolor Dreamcoat, and numerous trade
shows.

VII. Public Comment

None.

IX. Next Meeting Date

The next CAA Board meeting will be held Wednesday, March 22, 2006.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item IV.b.1.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2006

Distribution;

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE

MARKETING

OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

DeVos Place continues to perform very well compared to budget, and slightly ahead of
revised forecast. February continues the public show season in the Convention Center
with shows performing consistent with last year's attendance. The Performance Hall
had a very successful month with two sold out Jerty Seinfeld dates and the Broadway
Theatre Guild presenting Blast which was not part of the original season, or budget.

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
420 110 530 467 63
412,012 258,143 670,155 672,025 (1,870)
1,604,912 539,040 2,143,952 2,082,127 61,825
1,340,848 448,284 1,789,132 1,440,286 348,846
2,945,760 987,324 3,033,084 3,522,413 410,671
107,915 72,759 180,674 158,000 22,674
3,053,676 1,060,083 4,113,758 3,680,413 433,345
82,242 48,019 130,261 133,805 3,544
133,821 70,930 204,751 201,426 (3,325)
46,605 22,549 69,154 66,743 (2.411)
726,248 365,460 1,001,708 1,073,910 (17,798)
506,753 330,180 836,933 846,786 9,853
51,508 36,188 87,696 85,107 (2,589)
97,809 80,084 186,893 195,040 8,147
1,587,299 752,955 2,340,254 2,231,833 (108,421)
3,232,266 1,715,365 4,947,650 4,834,650 (113,000)
(178,610) (655,282) (833,892)  (1,154,237) 320,345
{178,610) (655,282) (833,892) (1,154,237) 320,345




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending February 2i
and the YTD ending June 30, 2006, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH February February February

Actual Budget FY 2005
Number of Events 74 44 53
Attendance 128,560 120,650 82,777
Direct Event Income $388,110 $343,208 $276,231
Ancillary Income 252,670 188,984 186,900
Other Income 13,455 13,167 6,172
Indirect Expenses (531,416) (484,446) (449,738)
Net Income $122,819 $60,913 $19,565
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2005

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 420 324 285
Attendance 412,012 445,575 377,248
Direct Event Income $1,604,912 $1,435,003 $1,212,628
Ancillary Income 1,340,848 1,074,535 827,287
Other Income 107,915 105,336 72,824
Indirect Expenses (3,232,284) (3,269,568) (2,859,584)
Net Income ($178,610) ($654,694) ($746,845)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in higher than budget for the month. Most of the overage was in the
Performance Hall with the addition of Blast to the schedule, and the very successful Jerry

Seinfeld date.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income was higher for the month. Overage was mainly due to higher than expected
spending in decorating and audio/visual. In addition, the facility hosted more satellite events
as an offshoot of other, larger events being hosted in the facility. These events are typically
reception based, contributing to higher than expected food & beverage revenue.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget for the month, however, overall is still very
consistent with expectations. The current month appears to be more a "timing of expenses"
than any sort of sign of a negative trend.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

----------------- CURRENT === == == == == mem e oo cccccccccccee YT mmmmvmm s mmm e cmee
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 375,254 313,750 281,287 1,719,167 1,370,139 1,186,335
SERVICES INCOME 12,856 29,458 <5,056> <114,255> 64,864 26,293
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 388,110 343,208 276,231 1,604,912 1,435,003 1,212,628
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 85,483 69,936 55,727 487,616 424,843 267,746
NOVELTY 872 3,600 296 5,328 16,900 4,055
ELECTRICAL 47,382 41,280 47,075 298,426 228,440 193,323
OTHER ANCILLARY 118,933 74,168 83,803 549,478 404,352 362,164
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 252,670 188,984 186, 900 1,340,848 1,074,535 827,287
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 640,780 532,192 463,132 2,945,760 2,509,538 2,039,915
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 13,455 13,167 6,172 107,915 105,336 72,824
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 654,235 545,359 469,304 3,053,674 2,614,874 2,112,739
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 17,053 11,151 8,562 82,242 89,208 78,620
FINANCE 16,510 16,786 12,758 133,821 134,288 136,014
MARKETING 3,008 5,562 4,821 46,605 44,496 38,514
OPERATIONS 117,201 92,284 99,429 726,248 717,772 546,895
EVENT MANAGEMENT 62,033 73,317 72,672 506,753 565,536 475,316
BOX OFFICE 6,198 7,093 3,982 51,508 56,744 50,307
SALES 15,157 16,254 10,703 97,809 130,032 91,282
OVERHEAD 294,256 261,999 236,811 1,587,299 1,531,492 1,442,636
INDIRECT EXPENSES 531,416 484,446 449,738 3,232,284 3,269,568 2,859,584
NET OPERATING INCOME 122,819 60,913 19,565 <178,610> <654, 694> <746, 845>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 122,819 60,913 19,565 <178,610> <654, 694> <746, 845>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

———————————————— CURRENT---=-«==-=c--c-cve ccvvencnw-----YEAR TO DATE----~---+--~-=~
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 2,044 0 4,171 32,772 0 6,053
Changeover Setup Billed 1,662 0 954 11,169 0 7,057
Stagehands Billed 109,134 88,050 104,511 746,995 487,200 553,285
Security Billed 43,069 36,870 30,197 163,579 106,535 95,745
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 21,873 15,525 14,698 95,739 73,500 81,098
Box Office Billed 2,400 2,200 1,700 10,500 9,800 10,200
Ticketing Service Billed 34,582 28,000 15,964 91,232 80,490 87,259
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 3,000 0 0
City Police Fire Billed 4,263 3,950 4,708 23,985 4,900 20,217
Traffic Control Billed 0 5,500 2,305 0 12,075 14,636
EMT Medical Billed 5,430 4,275 3,594 21,005 14,838 18,575
Cleaning Billed 159 0 264 3,483 0 1,534
Insurance Billed 450 0 75 2,631 0 3,360
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 0 86 0 0
Telephone Billed 9,755 6,225 5,205 37,270 21,125 39,905
Damages Billed 0 0 275 0 0 275
Other Production Billed 4,414 0 18,419 40,817 0 44,065
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 239,234 190,595 207,038 1,284,263 810,463 983,264
Advertising Expense 2,044 0 4,171 34,582 [ 6,179
Stagehand Wages 103,427 85,409 95,576 702,261 472,586 506,230
Security Wages 0 36,870 0 0 106,535 [}
Contracted Security Expense 42,864 0 29,241 165,649 0 89,837
Ushers & T/T Wages 15,311 10,868 10,288 68,542 51,451 56,769
Ticket Sellers Wages 5,247 1,200 3,124 12,667 8,500 10,173
Ticket Service Charge Expense 5,080 12,100 2,977 25,348 36,984 24,640
Ticket Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 5,481
City Police Fire Expense 4,363 0 4,708 30,345 0 20,155
Traffic Control Expense 0 5,750 2,986 0 17,125 20,792
EMT Medical Expense 4,085 4,275 6,174 20,063 14,738 18,607
Cleaning Wages 0 4,665 0 1,000 37,680 0
Contracted Cleaning Expense 38,066 [ 34,707 210,276 0 132,221
Insurance Expense 450 0 75 2,562 0 2,571
Group Sales Commissions 0 0 0 34 0 0
Allocated Telephone Expense 2,439 0 1,180 9,318 0 9,969
Production Expense 3,003 0 16,887 115,874 [} 53,348
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 226,378 161,137 212,093 1,398,519 745,599 956,971

NET SERVICE INCOME 12,856 29,458 <5,056> <114,255> 64,864 26,293




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended February 28, 2006

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 108 83 97,045 | 98,700 1,252,842 967,552
Consumer/Gated Shows 37 27 121,700 136,800 623,653 510,039
Devos Performance Hall 97 90 122,469 139,900 432,391 409,490
Ballroom Exclusive 50 47 27,022 33,275 287,827 348,392
Other 128 77 43,776 36,900 349,001 274,065
GRAND TOTALS 420 324 412,012 445,575 2,945,714 2,509,538
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 25.71% 25.62% 23.55% 22.15% 42.53% 38.55%
Consumer/Gated Shows 8.81% 8.33% 29.54% 30.70% 21.17% 20.32%
Devos Performance Hall 23.10% 27.78% 29.72% 31.40% 14.68% 16.32%
Ballroom Exclusive 11.90% 14.51% 6.56% 7.47% 9.77% 13.88%

Other 30.48% 23.77% 10.62% 8.28% 11.85% 10.92%



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD BNDING 02/28/06

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 2,360,111
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 594,219
PREPAID EXPENSES 76,846
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,031,176
FIXED ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS 3,031,176
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 270,933
ACCRUED EXPENSES 169,729
DEFERRED INCOME 92,453
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 713,475
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,246,591
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <450, 000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 1,116,290
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,296,905
NET INCOME (LOSS) <178,610>
TOTAL EQUITY 1,784,585
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,031,176



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Aufhority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended February 28, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days
Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

84,008
111,144
74,940
46,277
180,769

74,874

7,487

5,736
1,696
5,002
2,286

594,219



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

----------------- CURRENT----comececcmrece erecccccceceeccc e cYTD e mcmmccrcmmm e mm

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 61,631 63,590 51,056 486,448 508,720 454,539
Part-Time 19,639 13,167 14,122 87,656 105,336 76,309
Wages-Trade 132,629 97,400 122,534 936,831 779,200 729,323
Sales Commissions Group Sales 156 0 1] 1,308 [} 0
Auto Allowance 2,321 0 1,971 16,117 0 15,467
Auto Expense 150 2,121 0 1,200 16,968 1,200
Taxee & Benefits 57,345 42,356 51,072 382,374 338,848 324,159
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <140,876> <79,787> <125,958> <921,568> <638,296> <709,795>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 132,995 138,847 114,796 990,365 1,110,776 891,201
Contracted Security 18,932 19,000 18,359 164,431 152,000 156,928
Contracted Cleaning 3,197 0 4,009 17,368 1] 5,707
Other Contracted Services 224 200 0 1,789 1,600 1,160
Travel & Entertainment 486 1,626 - 1,187 7,758 13,008 6,440
Corporate Travel [} 0 [} 0 0 <221>
Meetings & Conventions 1,967 8,958 685 13,347 24,164 13,528
Dues & Subscriptions 42 300 300 2,541 2,400 2,407
Employee Training 0 833 1] 1,300 6,664 7,021
Computer Bxpense 4,059 6,250 3,441 31,754 50,000 49,850
Professional Fees 16,122 3,000 2,490 32,077 24,000 24,853
Marketing & Advertising 91 3,383 2,126 26,097 27,064 24,659
Box Office Expenses <B89> 0 <76> <106> 0 557
Small Equipment 0 0 ) 389 ) 2,163
Trash Removal 3,917 2,500 5,994 17,432 20,000 15,597
Equipment Rental 1,315 1,000 987 10,641 8,000 8,148
Landscaping [+] 0 0 3,671 0 0
Exterminating 814 6,300 3,331 25,468 50,400 10,269
Cleaning ] 0 0 9,600 6,000 0
Construction Costs 0 0 0 0 0 2,967
Repairs & Maintenance 34,480 19,167 27,486 216,429 153,336 135,040
Supplies 29,842 18,250 31,642 128,179 146,000 111,815
Bank Service Charges 1,907 1,000 1,388 11,258 8,000 7,605
Insurance 30,888 19,915 21,848 173,934 159,320 143,145
Licenses & Fees 120 0 0 253 1] 29
Printing & Stationary 214 917 788 372 7,336 1,646
Office Supplies 4,298 750 1,961 11,397 6,000 8,351
Postage 566 417 116 2,470 3,336 1,235
Parking Expense 1,663 1,500 1,520 13,470 12,000 11,049
Telephone Long Distance 7,445 6,000 2,336 47,416 48,000 46,564
Utilities 217,926 203,800 184,756 1,116,290 1,065,900 1,018,921
Base Fee 20,433 20,533 19,935 164,214 164,264 160,060
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <2,439> 0 <1,635> <9,318> o <10,424>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 398,421 345,599 334,942 2,241,919 2,158,792 1,967,141
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 531,416 484,446 449,738 3,232,284 3,269,568 2,858,342

¢



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,266,092 (833,892) 432,200 527,507
Benchmark 1,689,156  (1,154,237) 534,919 259,115
Excess (423,064) 320,345 (102,719) 268,392

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 245,200 245,200 490,400 478,439

Incentive Fee

Revenue 4,700,761 4,113,758 8,814,519 8,684,919
Benchmark Revenue 4,576,971 3,680,413 8,257,384 7,712,250
Revenue Excess 123,790 433,345 557,135 972,669
Incentive Fee ** - - - 194,533
Total SMG Management Fee 245,200 245,200 490,400 672,972

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2006

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

80 45 125 123 2
368,931 284,535 663,466 709,400 (55,934)
612,994 532,168 1,145,162 1,187,222 (42,060)
869,043 500,678 1,369,721 1,487,665 (117,944)
1,482,037 1,032,846 2,514,883 2,674,887 {160,004)
1,405,965 779,913 2,185,878 2,166,000 19,878
2,888,002 1,812,759 4,700,761 4,840,887 (140,126)
81,672 39,455 121,127 116,853 (4,274)
126,807 64,537 191,344 196,780 5,436
176,567 80,827 257,394 236,837 (20,557)
860,861 394,351 1,255,212 1,230,834 (24,378)
66,972 38,320 105,292 108,507 3,215
78,248 33,591 111,839 115,222 3,383
28,191 10,402 38,593 39,856 1,263
960,905 392,963 1,353,868 1,333,075 (20,793)
2,380,222 1,054,446 3,434,669 3,377,964 (56,705)
507,780 758,313 1,266,092 1,462,923 (196,831)
507,780 758,313 1,266,092 1,462,923 (196,831)

The Arena performed slightly behind budget for the month, however, the events
hosted performed very strong. Monster Trucks are typically hosted during the
early part of February, however, their schedule moved to March this year. The

strength of the Nickelback and Rascal Flatts concerts, and the United States
Synchronized Figure Skating Championships offset the lost revenue from the

schedule change.

[

v

General Mgpager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending February 28, 2006
and the YTD ending June 30, 2006 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

EVENT INCOME

February February February
Actual Budget FY 2005
14 19 18
75,518 108,500 86,247
$138,696 $109,726 $167,640
186,106 203,772 161,331
173,857 180,500 193,975
(323,120) (288,372) (284,601)
$175,538 $205,626 $238,345
YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2005
Actual Budget Prior Year
80 78 77
368,931 436,900 395,746
$612,994 $751,789 $684,296
869,043 1,006,352 829,519
1,405,965 1,444,000 1,411,428
(2,380,222) (2,254,476) (2,261,925)
$507,780 $947,665 $663,318

Event income came in higher than budget for the month. Monster Trucks moved out of February into March,

however, events hosted during the month helped offset the shortfall. While March will see a pickup from the
Trucks event, it will replace the Freestyle Motocross event which will not be hosted this fiscal year.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below budget for the month. This was mainly due to the Trucks event as the two
concerts hosted during the month performed better than average in both food & beverage and merchandise.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget, mainly due to winter heating. Overall utilities are running
about 10% over budget year to date. We anticipate some correction to this trend for the remainder of the

fiscal year.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

----------------- CURRENT - = = = = = = mmmmmmmmmme oo o e oo oo e YT mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm e eee
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 229,678 237,250 239,131 1,059,319 1,213,250 1,045,030
SERVICES INCOME <90,983> <127,524> <71,491> <446,325> <461,461> <360, 734>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 138,696 109,726 167,640 612,994 751,789 684,296
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 154,506 161,024 126,569 737,315 812,204 686,732
NOVELTY 24,532 33,000 28,002 105,931 167,200 115,291
ELECTRICAL o 0 600 0 0 600
OTHER ANCILLARY 7,068 9,748 6,160 25,797 26,948 26,895
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 186,106 203,772 161,331 869,043 1,006,352 829,519
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 324,802 313,498 328,971 1,482,037 1,758,141 1,513,815
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 173,857 180,500 193,975 1,405,965 1,444,000 1,411,428
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 498,659 493,998 522,946 2,888,002 3,202,141 2,925,243
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,655 11,112 8,568 81,672 78,396 82,045
FINANCE 16,020 17,773 10,365 126,807 131,684 123,050
MARKETING 16,130 21,112 10,861 176,567 158,396 147,205
LUXURY SEATING 11,749 9,602 12,668 78,248 76,816 79,004
OPERATIONS _ 112,874 105,318 80,310 860,861 821,544 853,186
BOX OFFICE 6,622 9,043 2,323 66,972 72,344 66,401
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 5,206 3,322 4,710 28,191 26,576 29,154
OVERHEAD 146,863 111, 090 154,798 960,905 888,720 881,881
INDIRECT EXPENSES 323,120 288,372 284,601 2,380,222 2,254,476 2,261,925
NET OPERATING INCOME 175,538 205, 626 238,345 507,780 947,665 663,318
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 175,538 205,626 238,345 507,780 947,665 663,318




Advertising Billed
Sponsorship Income

Labor Billed

Changeover Setup Billed
Stagehands Billed

Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Production Materials Billed
Cleaning Billed

Insurance Billed

Group Sales Commissions Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME
Advertising Expense

Sponsorship Expenses
Labor Wages

Contracted Changeover Setup Expense

Stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense
Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense

EMT Medical Expense
Contracted Cleaning Expense
Group Sales Commissions
Allocated Telephone Expense
Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

---------------- CURRENT--------c-ccuzc-ce ccceceeoacee--YEAR TO DATE------v-o--n-

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
22,293 0 64,237 159,981 20,000 287,855
5,000 0 0 15,000 0 20,000
1,950 1,080 2,972 12,878 9,720 12,473
14,855 7,600 20,405 74,359 68,050 84,186
62,636 38,300 59,692 298,261 258,300 284,515
22,417 12,300 19,731 106,601 95,050 104,374
6,411 9,800 12,099 61,565 70,400 67,942
1,032 800 1,527 6,042 7,750 9,299
3,344 23,000 14,975 40,900 133,850 91,965
650 0 6,288 5,228 0 7,288
2,240 3,144 2,048 9,030 7,512 7,674
2,550 4,200 3,703 12,717 12,625 17,390
0 0 0 3,778 0 0
7,991 7,200 11,184 54,759 64,850 57,995
0 ] [ 1,123 [¢] 0
0 0 1,126 4,615 0 4,342
3,185 2,675 1,720 17,955 16,635 18,605
34,907 8,000 14,072 194,007 61,000 115,045
191,460 118,099 235,778 1,078,795 825,742 1,190,947
23,420 0 63,479 173,502 20,000 289,519
1,157 0 0 1,157 0 10,000
1,658 918 2,335 10,946 10,098 10,411
30,806 41,350 39,260 171,153 164,204 183,581
58,303 38,229 56,096 298,655 283,526 277,059
47,075 35,000 38,744 205,318 160,350 177,232
46,047 44,000 39,607 191,713 181,830 170,135
877 : 0 1,298 5,135 0 7,904
3,352 23,000 8,795 35,606 156,750 81,726
2,240 3,144 2,328 11,509 10,106 8,924
4,778 7,043 4,940 21,120 22,754 18,500
22,488 44,345 36,089 162,592 194,053 172,177
0 ] 0 2,009 0 0
866 594 516 4,742 5,432 5,462
39,376 8,000 13,784 229,963 78,100 139,051
282,443 245,623 307,269 1,525,120 1,287,203 1,551,681

<90,983> <127,524> <71,491> <446,325> <461,461> <360,734>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending February 28, 2006

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days

Actual Budget

23

8

13

33

3

80

28.75%

10.00%

16.25%

41.25%

3.75%

24

9

15

29

1

78

30.77%

11.54%

19.23%

37.18%

1.28%

Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget
57,810 96,000 139,660 349,212
33,899 47,400 266,316 154,230
97,909 120,000 676,547 970,435
155,570 164,500 276,186 274,740
23,743 9,000 123,316 9,524
368,931 436,900 1,482,025 1,758,141
15.67% 21.97% 9.42% 19.86%
9.19% 10.85% 17.97% 8.77%
26.54% 27.47% 45.65% 55.20%
42.17% 37.65% 18.64% 15.63%
6.44% 2.06% 8.32% 0.54%



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 3,394,273
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 913,237
PREPAID EXPENSES 79,047
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,386,557

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 4,386,557

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 399,947
ACCRUED EXPENSES 373,922
DEFERRED INCOME 835,021
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 1,995,468
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,604,357
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <1,250,000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 541,956
RETAINED EARNINGS 982,464
NET INCOME (LOSS) 507,780
TOTAL EQUITY 782,199

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,386,557



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending February 28, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable

298,143
191,832

298,547

72,516

22,547

29,652

913,237



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/06

----------------- CURRENT-----ccocmmmcmme e mee e e oo YTD-------cm-mcmmmc oo

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 52,944 57,384 34,264 448,730 459,072 449,127
Part-Time 8,210 3,333 5,049 46,107 26,664 44,623
Wages-Trade 87,044 77,921 65,833 537,893 623,368 518,682
Wages-Trade Part-Time 0 [ 0 0 0 5,219
Sales Commissions Group Sales 355 [ [] 3,543 0 [
Auto Allowance 594 [} 577 4,633 0 4,617
Auto Expense 300 985 0 2,400 7,880 2,400
Taxes & Benefits 41,192 33,992 35,901 296,991 271,936 279,879

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <81,789> <64,795> <73,088> - <443,338> <518,360> <429,731>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 108,850 108,820 68,537 896,960 870,560 874,816
Contracted Security 16,727 19,000 18,384 154,111 152,000 152,000
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,500 2,098 21,581 20,000 18,787
Other Contracted Services 429 300 314 3,898 2,400 3,167
Travel & Entertainment 41 858 586 6,160 6,864 4,454
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 509 5,000 o
Meetings & Conventions 0 7,850 565 2,557 10,300 5,139
Dues & Subscriptions <472> 208 186 7,922 1,664 7,346
Employee Training (¢} 750 0 337 6,000 200
Computer Expense 4,901 5,417 4,809 48,900 43,336 52,184
Professional Fees 1,875 2,583 2,205 16,303 20,664 19,656
Marketing & Advertising 6,913 7,834 8,912 70,159 62,672 47,470

Box Office Expenses <927> 0 <623> <1,840> 4] <378>
Small Equipment 0 0 3,773 348 [} 4,182
Trash Removal 3,144 1,500 2,505 12,325 12,000 13,756
Equipment Rental 1,314 1,250 1,167 11,037 10,000 10,005
Landscaping 0 0 0 2,234 0 0
Exterminating 248 300 248 2,500 2,400 1,980
Cleaning 0 9200 0 2,650 7,200 4,050
Repairs & Maintenance 8,016 9,333 11,108 110,820 74,664 105,435
Supplies 28,867 12,841 10,781 129,106 102,728 104,526
Bank Sexrvice Charges 533 750 737 4,428 6,000 5,214
Insurance 16,565 15,473 17,734 107,154 123,784 97,611
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 72 0 0
Other Taxes 95 0 0 <174> 0 0
Printing & Stationary 126 1,750 0 387 14,000 687
Office Supplies 3,630 1,000 1,498 13,245 8,000 10,832
Pogstage 1,531 1,000 409 6,645 8,000 7,206
Parking Expense 2,076 2,000 1,925 17,170 16,000 19,137
Telephone Long Distance 3,879 5,000 10,637 57,743 40,000 51,467
Utilities 97,713 61,317 100,864 542,637 490,536 513,413
Base Fee 20,433 20,533 19,935 162,719 164,264 158,899

Common Area Expense <4,616> <2,945> <4,176> <25,638> <23,560> <25,853>

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <866> <375> <516> <4,742> <3,000> <5,462>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 214,270 179,552 216,064 1,483,263 1,383,916 1,387,110
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 323,120 288,372 284,601 2,380,222 2,254,476 2,261,925




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,266,092 (833,892) 432,200 527,507
Benchmark 1,689,156  (1,154,237) 534,919 259,115
Excess (423,064) 320,345 (102,719) 268,392

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 245,200 245,200 490,400 478,439
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,700,761 4,113,758 8,814,519 8,684,919
Benchmark Revenue 4,576,971 3,680,413 8,257,384 7,712,250
Revenue Excess 123,790 433,345 557,135 972,669
Incentive Fee ** - - - 194,533
Total SMG Management Fee 245,200 245,200 490,400 672,972

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.b.ii.

1:58 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
03/10/06 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 28, 2006
Feb 28, 06
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1050 - Operations - Cash
Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Vehicles

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

295,324.83

295,324.83

18,537,484.26

18,537,484.26

18,832,809.09

23,470.00

23,470.00

18,856,279.09

262,299.12

262,299.12

262,299.12

262,299.12

37,652,992.39
-18,297,908.43
-761,103.99

18,593,979.97

18,856,279.09



11:31 AM
03/10/06 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 02/28/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo
Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 24 items
Bill Pmt -Check 1/14/2006 6279 PricewaterhouseCo...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2006 6284 Dickinson Wright P...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2006 6287 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2006 6288 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2006 6292 The Employers' Ass...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2006 6285 DTE Energy
Check 2/3/2006 10123 Susan M. Waddell
Check 2/3/2006 10123 Susan M. Waddel!
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6300 Intuit
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6299 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6298 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6303 Rapid Hot Coffee S...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6296 DTE Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6295 Deluxe Business C...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6294 Consumers Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6293 Andy J. Egan Comp...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6304 Rockford Constructi...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6305 Tele-Rad, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6306 The Bouma Corpor...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6297 Grand Rapids City ...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6301 Kent Count Dept of ...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/14/2006 6302 Progressive AE
Check 2/17/2006 10124 Susan M. Waddell
Check 2/17/2006 10124 Susan M. Waddell

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 146 items
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 1/31/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/6/2006 DeVos Place ...

Cir

HKRXKXXKXK AR XXX AKX XK INXN XK XK INX XXX XX

HKXXKAXKARARIRRKAKAK XXX X XXX XXX X XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Amount Balance
236,687.31
-22,000.00 -22,000.00
-2,232.60 -24,232.60
-260.96 -24,493.56
-50.00 -24,543.56
-285.00 -24,828.56
-1,346.39 -26,174.95
-831.17 -27,006.12
-1,437.88 -28,444.00
-64.49 -28,508.49
-50.00 -28,558.49
-260.96 -28,819.45
-27.68 -28,847.13
-2,814.28 -31,661.41
-108.98 -31,770.39
-31,625.09 -63,395.48
-33,835.00 -97,230.48
-30,730.00 -127,960.48
-2,128.00 -130,088.48
-84,355.00 -214,443.48
-13,148.04 -227,591.52
-171,434.06 -399,025.58
-205.97 -399,231.55
-1,039.72 -400,271.27
-1,437.88 -401,709.15
-401,709.15 -401,709.15
59.00 59.00
639.00 698.00
175.50 873.50
13.00 886.50
105.00 991.50
209.00 1,200.50
1,009.50 2,210.00
897.00 3,107.00
596.00 3,703.00
136.00 3,839.00
1,688.00 5,527.00
426.00 5,953.00
132.00 6,085.00
38.00 6,123.00
598.00 6,721.00
643.50 7,364.50
719.50 8,084.00
389.50 8,473.50
837.50 9,311.00
2,106.00 11,417.00
294.00 11,711.00
699.50 12,410.50
1,476.00 13,886.50
3,274.00 17,160.50
876.00 18,036.50
854.00 18,890.50
2,925.00 21,815.50
1,145.50 22,961.00
695.50 23,656.50
2,639.50 26,296.00
3,524.50 29,820.50
702.00 30,522.50
1,683.50 32,206.00
1,397.50 33,603.50
429.00 34,032.50
708.50 34,741.00
354.00 35,095.00

-2



11:31 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

03110/06 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 02/28/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance
Deposit 2/6/2006 DeVos Place ... X 167.00 35,262.00
Deposit 2/6/2006 DeVos Place ... X 248.00 35,510.00
Deposit 2/6/2006 DeVos Place ... X 92.00 35,602.00
Deposit 2/712006 DeVos Place ... X 90.00 35,692.00
Deposit 2/7/2006 DeVos Place ... X 237.00 35,929.00
Deposit 2/7/2006 DeVos Place ... X 312.00 36,241.00
Deposit 2/7/2006 DeVos Place ... X 229.00 36,470.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 DeVos Place ... X 213.00 36,683.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 DeVos Place ... X 118.00 36,801.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 DeVos Place ... X 79.00 36,880.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 DeVos Place ... X 129.00 37,009.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 DeVos Place ... X 100,000.00 137,009.00
Deposit 2/8/2006 Van Andel Ar... X 400,000.00 537,009.00
Deposit 2/9/2006 DeVos Place ... X 58.50 537,067.50
Deposit 2/9/2006 DeVos Place ... X 131.00 537,198.50
Deposit 2/9/2006 DeVos Place ... X 75.00 537,273.50
Deposit 2/9/2006 DeVos Place... X 94.50 537,368.00
Deposit 2/9/2006 DeVos Place ... X 249.00 537,617.00
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 123.00 537,740.00
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 126.00 537,866.00
Payment 2/10/2006 1769 Grand Action Com... X 38,170.00 576,036.00
Deposit 2/10/2006 VOID: Miscell... X 0.00 576,036.00
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 396.50 576,432.50
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 284.00 576,716.50
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 2,740.00 579,456.50
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 906.00 580,362.50
Deposit 2/10/2006 DeVos Place ... X 702.50 581,065.00
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 1,033.50 582,098.50
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 2,014.50 584,113.00
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 845.00 584,958.00
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 1,066.00 586,024.00
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 815.00 586,839.00
Deposit 2/11/2006 DeVos Place ... X 815.50 587,654.50
Deposit 2/12/2006 DeVos Place ... X 298.00 587,952.50
Deposit 2/12/2006 DeVos Place ... X 734.50 588,687.00
Deposit 2/12/2006 DeVos Place ... X 1,482.00 590,169.00
Deposit 2/13/2006 DeVos Place ... X 16.00 590,185.00
Deposit 2/13/2006 DeVos Place... X 84.00 590,269.00
Deposit 2/13/2006 DeVos Place ... X 274.00 580,543.00
Deposit 2/14/2006 DeVos Place ... X 221.00 590,764.00
Deposit 2/14/2006 Deposit X 10.00 590,774.00
Deposit 2/14/2006 DeVos Place ... X 900.00 591,674.00
Deposit 2/15/12006 DeVos Place ... X 1,471.50 593,145.50
Deposit . 2/15/2006 DeVos Place ... X 1,042.00 594,187.50
Deposit 2/15/2006 DeVos Place ... X 516.50 594,704.00
Deposit 2/15/2006 DeVos Place ... X 195.00 594,899.00
Deposit 2/15/2006 DeVos Place ... X 22.00 594,921.00
Deposit 2/15/2006 DeVos Place... X 212.00 595,133.00
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place ... X 555.50 595,688.50
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place ... X 16.00 595,704.50
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place ... X 830.00 596,534.50
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place ... X 98.00 596,632.50
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place ... X 325.00 596,957.50
Deposit 2/16/2006 DeVos Place... X 1,799.00 598,756.50
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 274.00 599,030.50
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 981.50 600,012.00
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 326.50 600,338.50
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 643.50 600,982.00
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 84.00 601,066.00
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 791.00 601,857.00
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place ... X 445.00 602,302.00
Deposit 2/17/2006 DeVos Place... X 2,552.00 604,854.00
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVos Place... X 2,132.50 606,986.50
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVos Place ... X 1,722.50 608,709.00
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVos Place... X 1,885.50 610,594.50
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVos Place ... X 525.00 611,119.50
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVosPlace ... X 903.50 612,023.00
Deposit 2/18/2006 DeVos Place... X 693.00 612,716.00

-3-



11:31 AM
0310/06 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 02/28/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo
Deposit 2/19/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/19/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/19/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/19/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/20/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/20/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/20/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/21/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/21/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/21/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/22/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/22/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/22/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 Deposit
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/23/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/24/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/25/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/26/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/26/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/26/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/27/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/27/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/27/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/27/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/28/2006 Interest
Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 12 items

Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6112 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6310 Dickinson Wright P...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6311 DTE Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6312 Grand Rapids City ...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6313 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6309 Consumers Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6307 Alta Lift Truck Servi...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6308 Andy J. Egan Comp...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6314 ICMA Retirement C...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6315 PricewaterhouseCo...
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6316 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 2/28/2006 6317 Virco Inc

Total Checks and Payments

=

HKARXK IR XK XXX XX XXX DX X DX XX DI XX I X XXX X DX XX X X X X X ,O

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Amount Balance
656.50 613,372.50
585.00 613,957.50

6.50 613,964.00
2,086.50 616,050.50
53.00 616,103.50
196.00 616,299.50
1.00 616,300.50
189.00 616,489.50
77.00 616,566.50
36.00 616,602.50
7.00 616,609.50
115.00 616,724.50
200.00 616,924.50
50.00 616,974.50
93.00 617,067.50
10.00 617,077.50
330.50 617,408.00
75.50 617,483.50
1,383.00 618,866.50
320.00 619,186.50
338.00 619,524.50
131.00 619,655.50
130.00 619,785.50
940.00 620,725.50
523.50 621,249.00
462.00 621,711.00
365.00 622,076.00
604.50 622,680.50
338.00 623,018.50
425.00 623,443.50
909.00 624,352.50
2,508.50 626,861.00
568.00 627,429.00
1,111.50 628,540.50
409.50 628,950.00
617.50 629,567.50
555.50 630,123.00
190.00 630,313.00
123.50 630,436.50
74.00 630,510.50
386.11 630,896.61
630,896.61 630,896.61
229,187.46 229,187.46
229,187.46 465,874.77
-398.73 -398.73
-2,016.20 -2,414.93
-4,101.40 -6,516.33
-7,007.00 -13,523.33
-260.96 -13,784.29
-65,569.78 -79,354.07
-8,494.00 -87,848.07
-43,600.00 -131,448.07
-50.00 -131,498.07
-2,000.00 -133,498.07
-312.72 -133,810.79
-37,650.15 -171,460.94
-171,460.94 -171,460.94



11:31 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

03/10/06 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 02/28/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo

Deposits and Credits - 4 items
Deposit 2/28/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/28/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/28/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 2/28/2006 DeVos Place ...

Total Deposits and Credits

Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 02/28/2006
New Transactions

Checks and Payments - 2 items
Check 3/3/2006 10125 Susan M. Waddell
Check 3/3/2006 10125 Susan M. Waddell

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 34 items
Deposit 3/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/1/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/2/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/3/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/4/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/5/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/6/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/6/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/6/2006 Van Andel Ar...
Deposit 3/6/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/6/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/6/2006 DeVos Place ...
Deposit 3/8/2006 Van Andel Ar...

Total Deposits and Credits
Total New Transactions

Ending Balance

Cir

Amount Balance
556.00 556.00
20.00 576.00
61.00 637.00
274.00 911.00
911.00 911.00
-170,549.94 -170,549.94
58,637.52 295,324.83
-1,437.88 -1,437.88
-791.48 -2,229.36
-2,229.36 -2,229.36
1,766.50 1,766.50
123.00 1,889.50
612.00 2,501.50
467.00 2,968.50
601.50 3,570.00
715.50 4,285.50
1,294.50 5,580.00
2,511.50 8,091.50
54.00 8,145.50
424.50 8,570.00
58.00 8,628.00
22.00 8,650.00
1,136.50 9,786.50
169.00 9,945.50
1,911.00 11,856.50
915.50 12,772.00
282.00 13,054.00
3,042.00 16,096.00
1,215.50 17,311.50
981.50 18,293.00
1,632.50 19,925.50
2,877.00 22,802.50
1,241.50 24,044.00
188.50 24,232.50
2,099.50 26,332.00
2,579.00 28,911.00
448.50 29,359.50
20.00 29,379.50
166.00 29,535.50
250,000.00 279,535.50
250,000.00 529,535.50
298.00 529,833.50
50.00 529,883.50
11,522.00 541,405.50
541,405.50 541,405.50
539,176.14 539,176.14
597,813.66 834,500.97




10:57 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

03/10/06 Reconciliation Detail

1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 02/01/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 2 items

Transfer 1/11/2006 Funds Transfer
Transfer 1/24/2006 Funds Transfer

Total Checks and Payments
Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Register Balance as of 02/01/2006

Ending Balance

Cir

Amount Balance

19,037,484.26
-300,000.00 -300,000.00
-200,000.00 -500,000.00
-500,000.00 -500,000.00
-500,000.00 -500,000.00
-500,000.00 18,537,484.26
-500,000.00 18,537,484.26
<500,000.00 18,537,484.26




!

Z20T3uy
Z0T3IuY

Ad9 JILSOd

\>

G5°S$9°'Z8L ST

00°000°00S-

00°000°00S-

€T:LZ:80 90/0T/20
€T:LZ:80 90/0T/20

d3Lsod FWIL

$¥OVd

9Z°%8%'LES ST

92 ¥8¥%'LEL'ST

92 %87 'LEO'6T
JONY'IVH

ET6ET TCZ

FONVIVE XIIVAd IDVIIAVY

00°000°00S TYIOL
00°000°00S z 0 S€
INOOWY ON INOOWY ON Hdil
........... SNOILOQAQEd---- ----------SNOILIQQ¥------
gaq0D 94dAlL A€ guodd

00°000°002 T8TZO0ANL

00°000’00€ YLTZOANL

SNOIILONA3A SNOILIAaV FO¥Nos
T0L0 :dITHON ONILVYHJO-YYD : aNAd

90/T€/10 HONOWHL 90/T0/TO

YIDAAT ANOJ ¢ SHIYIS

LNIY J0 AINNOO

SE 90/%2/10
SE 90/TT/T0
ddAL JLYa

$2:2T 90/€1/20 :NQ¥
*Ld¥T



1:56 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

03/10/06 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2005 through February 2006

Jul '05 - Feb 06

Income

4500 - Interest on Investments 418,939.80
4530 - Facility Operations 1,700,000.00
4540 - Land Lease 92,176.00
4545 - Parking Revenues 448,564.15
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 76,691.21
Total Income 2,736,371.16
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 37,947.38
6040 - Legal Services 7,363.60
Total 6000 - Professional Services 45,310.98
6060 - Other Contractual Services 7,497.35
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 26,990.97
6068 - Parking Management 174,497.40
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees -10.00
6020 - Computer Services 249.95
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 8,630.00
6110 - Meeting Expense 1,480.12
6120 - Supplies 1,559.97
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 11,910.04
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 27,306.25
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 1,318,826.79
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 767,893.80
6310 - Natural Gas 17,544.86
6320 - Steam 780,841.03
6340 - Water & Sewer 73,127.48
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,639,407.17
6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees 750.00
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 194,533.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 37,607.05
8030 - Employee Benefits 12,838.15
Total 8000 - Personal Services 50,445.20
Total Expense 3,497,475.15
Net Income -761,103.99




2:00 PM
03/10/06
Accrual Basis

Income

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss by Fund
July 2005 through February 2008

4500 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations
4540 - Land Lease

4545 - Parking Revenues

4350 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense

6000 - Professional Services

6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 -

Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services

6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management

6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6010 -

6020

Bank Fees

- Computer Services
6030 -
6110 -
6120 -

Insurance-Property/Liability
Meeting Expense
Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 -
6310 -
6320 -

Electricity
Natural Gas
Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees
8000 - Personal Services

8001 -
8030 -

Employee Wages
Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

Convention Center
(Construction)

Admin & Capital Replacement
(Operations) TOTAL

205,036.90 213,902.90  418,939.80
0.00 1,700,000.00 1,700,000.00

0.00 92,176.00 92,176.00

0.00 443,291.15  448,564.15
23,400.00 53,291.21 76,691.21
228,436.90 2,502,661.26 2,736,371.16
0.00 37,947.38 37,947.38

0.00 7,363.60 7,363.60

0.00 45,310.98 45,310.98

0.00 7,497.35 7,497.35

0.00 26,990.97 26,990.97

0.00 17449740  174,497.40

0.00 -10.00 -10.00

0.00 24995 24985

0.00 8,630.00 8,630.00

0.00 1,480.12 1,480.12

0.00 1,659.97 1,5569.97

0.00 11,910.04 11,910.04
0.00 27,306.256 27,306.25

0.00 1,318,826.79 1,318,826.79

0.00 767,893.80 767,893.80

0.00 17,544.86 17,544.86

0.00 780,841.03  780,841.03

0.00 73,127.48 73,127.48

0.00 1,639,407.17 1,639,407.17

0.00 750.00 750.00

0.00 194,633.00  194,533.00

0.00 37,607.05 37,607.05

0.00 12,838.15 12,838.15

0.00 50,445.20 50,445.20

0.00 3,497,475.15 3,497 475.16
228,436.90 -994,813.89  -761,103.99




2:02 PM ' . .
pybied Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2005 through February 2006
TOTAL
Jul '05 - Feb 06 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
lncome R — L ] L | L ]
4500 - Interest on Investments 418,939.80 386,864.00 32,075.80 108.29%
4530 - Facllity Operations 1,700,000.00 1,679,624.00 20,376.00 101.21%
4540 - Land Lease 92,176.00 92,128.00 48.00 100.05%
4545 - Parking Revenues 448,564.15 342,336.00 106,228.15 131.03%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 76,691.21 10,000.00 66,691.21 766.91%
Total Income 2,736,371.16 2,510,952.00 225,419.16 108.98%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 37,947.38 25,464.00 12,483.38 149.02%
6040 - Legal Services 7,363.60 20,000.00 -12,636.40 36.82%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 45,310.98 45,464.00 -163.02 99.66%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 7,497.35
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 26,990.97 51,072.00 -24,081.03 52.85%
6068 - Parking Management 174,497 .40 227,936.00 -53,438.60 76.56%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees -10.00
6020 - Computer Services 249.95
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 8,630.00 13,864.00 -5,234.00 62.25%
6110 - Meeting Expense 1,480.12 536.00 944.12 276.14%
6120 - Supplies 1,559.97 664.00 896.97 234.94%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 11,910.04 15,064.00 -3,153.96 79.06%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 27,306.25
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 1,318,826.79 3,045,864.00 -1,727,037.21 43.3%
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 767,893.80 729,000.00 38,893.80 105.34%
6310 - Natural Gas 17,544.86 21,336.00 -3,791.14 82.23%
6320 - Steam 780,841.03 627,904.00 152,937.03 124.36%
6340 - Water & Sewer 73,127.48 95,600.00 -22,472.52 76.49%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,639,407.17 1,473,840.00 165,567.17 111.23%
6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees 750.00
6500 - DID Assessment 0.00 31,360.00 -31,360.00 0.0%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 194,533.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 37,607.05 37,696.00 -88.95 99.76%
8030 - Employee Benefits 12,838.15 11,712.00 1,126.15 109.62%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 50,445.20 49,408.00 1,037.20 102.1%
Total Expense 3,497,475.15 4,940,008.00 -1,442,532.85 70.8%
Net Income -761,103.99 -2,429,056.00 1,667,952.01 31.33%

-10 -



2:04 PM

03/10/06
Accrual Basis

Income
4030 - Federal Support
4040 - Private Support
4500 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income
Expense

5000 - Architectural and Engineering
5010 - Construction Material Testing
5020 - Construction in Progress-GMP

6000 - Professional Services

6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services

6040 - Legal Services
Total 8000 - Professional Services

6050 - Project Mgt/Owner's Rep
6060 - Other Contractual Services
6085 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6070 - Facility Management Fees
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services

6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability

6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies
6130 - Postage/Express

- Other Supplies & Expenses - Other

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects

6300 - Utilities Expense
8301 - Electricity
6310 - Natural Gas
6320 - Steam
8330 - Telephone
6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 8300 - Utilities Expense

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees

6600 - SMG Incentive Fees

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

8000 - Personal Services - Other

Total 8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

July 2005 through February 2006

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

Jul '05 - Feb 08 Jul '04 - Feb 05 $ Change % Change
0.00 3,528,884.00 -3,528,884.00 -100.0%
0.00 2,204,000.00 -2,204,000.00 -100.0%
418,939.80 294,322.27 124,617.53 42.3%
1,700,000.00 1,950,000.00 -250,000.00 -12.8%
92,176.00 68,607.00 23,569.00 34.4%

448,564.15 392,436.00 56,128.15 14.3%

76,691.21 13,248.00 63,443.21 478.9%

2,736,371.16 8,451,497.27 -5,715,126.11 -67.6%
0.00 4,142,723.63 -4,142,723.63 -100.0%
0.00 64,760.62 -64,760.62 -100.0%
0.00 17,876,887.00 -17,876,887.00 -100.0%
37,947.38 41,026.92 -3,079.54 -7.5%
7,363.60 11,428.31 -4,064.71 -35.6%
45,310.98 52,455.23 -7,144.25 -13.6%
0.00 159,802.50 -159,802.50 -100.0%
7,497.35 1,774,503.26 -1,767,005.91 -99.6%
26,990.97 14,218.71 12,772.26 89.8%
174,497.40 176,249.00 -1,751.60 -1.0%
0.00 139,190.00 -139,190.00 -100.0%
-10.00 21.90 -31.90 -145.7%
249.95 349.00 -99.05 -28.4%
8,630.00 9,661.74 -931.74 9.7%
1,480.12 545.08 935.04 171.5%
1,569.97 5,704.57 -4,144.60 -72.7%

0.00 170.00 -170.00 -100.0%

0.00 113.37 -113.37 -100.0%
11,910.04 16,465.66 -4,555.62 -27.7%
27,306.25 0.00 27,306.25 100.0%

1,318,826.79 148,539.25 1,170,287.54 787.9%
767.,893.80 761,625.86 6,267.94 0.8%
17,544.86 17,386.84 158.02 0.9%
780,841.03 659,407.08 121,433.95 18.4%
0.00 751.88 -751.88 -100.0%
73,127.48 78,480.64 -5,363.16 -6.8%
1,639,407.17 1,617,652.30 121,754.87 8.0%
750.00 750.00 0.00 0.0%
194,533.00 0.00 194,533.00 100.0%
37,607.05 34,046.00 3,661.05 10.5%
12,838.15 11,568.85 1,269.30 11.0%

0.00 2,091.00 -2,091.00 -100.0%

50,445.20 47,705.85 2,739.35 5.7%
3,497,475.15 26,131,903.01 -22,634,427.86 -86.6%
-761,103.99 -17,680,405.74 16,919,301.75 95.7%

-11-



Item I'V.b.iii.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Birgit Klohs
Chair - Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM: Robert White
Fiscal Services Director

SUBJECT: Responses for Request for Audit Services

DATE: March 14, 2006

At the February 16, 2006, Finance Committee meeting, the audited financial report for Fiscal
Years ended June 30, 2002 & 2003 was reviewed and accepted. Shortly thereafter, staff issued a
“Request for Proposals” which solicited audit services for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2004
through 2006, inclusive.

On March 10, 2006, staff opened and read responses from all five-audit firms solicited in the
original mailing. A bid tabulation is attached hereto. After having read the proposals submitted,
it is the recommendation of staff that the Finance Committee recommend the designation of
BDO Seidman LLP as auditor of the Convention/Arena Authority for the Fiscal Years ending
June 30, 2004 through 2006. The fee quoted for these services totaled $40,000 with an allowance
of $250 per annum for out of pocket expenses.

Assuming the concurrence of the Finance Committee and Board, staff would expect to deliver
draft financial statements for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2004 and 2005 to the auditors in
May 2006. Staff would expect to deliver the final audited financial statements, with auditor
opinion, to the Finance Committee meeting of July 2006. It is expected that the draft financial
statements for the year ending June 30, 2006 will be made available to the auditor in October
2006, with delivery of the final audited financial statements, with auditor opinion, delivered to
the December 2006 Finance Committee meeting.

This memorandum and attached bid tabulation will be delivered to the Finance Committee
meeting presently scheduled for Thursday, March 16, 2006.



Respondent
BDO Seidman LLP
Rehmann Robson

Plante & Moran PLLC

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
RFP - Audit Services - Response
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2004 - 2006, Inclusive
Bid Opening - March 10, 2006

Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2004 2005 2006 TOTAL

$ 13,000 " $13,000 M $14,000 " $ 40,000
28,000 @ 18,000 46,000

23,900 23,900 24,600 72,400

Deloitte & Touche LLP 37,500 © 38,750 ® 40,000 ® 116,250
PricewaterhouseCoopers - -- - Declined
NOTES:

M Plus out-of-pocket not to exceed $250.
@ combined fee for two-year 2004-2005 audit.
@ plys project-related expenses not to exceed $1,500.



®
VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Mar 15 | Griffins vs Manitoba AH JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
ISA MW Banquet All 11:00 AM Set-up
5:45P-7P Meeting
Thur, Mar 16 | Rampage vs Utah AH JIM Arena 10:00 AM Team practice
11:00 AM Visiting team practice
3:00 PM Dance team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Football game
9:30P-9:50P Post-game autographs
Huntington Bank MW Banquet C/D | 11:00 AM Set-up
6:30 PM Hospitality room
Fri, Mar 17 Griffins vs Cleveland AH CHRIS | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Griffins MW Banquet A 4:00 PM Set-up
5:30P-6P Meeting
Sat, Mar 18 Griffins vs Toronto AH CHRIS | Arena 12:30 PM Doors
1P-5P Youth hockey
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate
Sun, Mar 19 | Available
Mon, Mar 20 | Centerplate MwW Banquet D 1:00 PM Set-up
6P-9P TIPS training
Tue, Mar 21 Available
Wed, Mar 22 | Big Daddy’s Doo Wop SC Arena 5:00 PM Load-in
Thur, Mar 23 | Big Daddy’s Doo Wop SC RICH Arena 5:30 PM Pre-show dinner party
8:00 PM Performance
Fri, Mar 24 Stars on Ice AH JIM Arena 7:30 PM Performance
IMG MW Banquet B 4:00 AM Set-up
4:30P-10P Catering
Stars on Ice MW Banquet C/D
Sat, Mar 25 Griffins vs Rochester SC TODD | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate
AmeriCredit MwW Banquet A 12:00 PM Set-up
5:30P-7:30P Banquet
Scott Christopher, Inc. MW Banquet C 9:00 AM Set-up
5:15P-7:30P Banquet
Sun, Mar 26 | Griffins vs Rochester SC JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
7:30P-8P Post-game skate
Mon, Mar 27 | Available
Tue, Mar 28 Disney on Ice AH Arena 10:00 AM Pre-rig
Wed, Mar 29 | Disney onIce AH RICH Arena 7:00 AM Load-in
7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Mar 30 { Disney on Ice SC JIM Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Fri, Mar 31 Disney on Ice AH STEVE | Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Sat, Apr 1 Disney on Ice SC Arena 11:30 AM Performance
3:30 PM Performance
7:30 PM Performance




Sun, Apr 2 Disney on Ice AH Arena 2:00 PM Performance
4:30 PM Load-out
Mon, Apr 3 Available
Tue, Apr 4 Available
Wed, Apr 5 Available
Thur, Apr 6 Available
Fri, Apr 7 Available
Sat, Apr 8 Rampage vs Colorado SC Arena 10:00 AM Team practice
11:00 AM Visiting team practice
3:00 PM Dance team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Football game
10P-10:30P Post-game autographs
Huntington Bank MwW Banquet C/D | 11:00 AM Set-up
6:30 PM Hospitality room
Sun, Apr 9 World Wrestling Entertainment SC Arena 4:00 PM Doors
5:00 PM Performance
Mon, Apr 10 | Available
Tue, Apr 11 Available
Wed, Apr 12 | Available
Thur, Apr 13 | Available
Fri, Apr 14 Griffins vs San Antonio AH Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
Sat, Apr 15 Griffins vs Milwaukee AH Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
7:30P-8P Post-game skate

Sun, Apr 16

Available




90/S1/€ SWooy SuNI 0ION =0-V NOW
d-V JOO[19AQ 19ATY = -V O

-V wooIed = q-v 1T1vd B3Iy A19][ED pue1d) =9H
[[eH 9oUPULIOLID] SOAS] = Ad H-V swooy 3unssy Joo[1940 = H-V O
[ OV S[leH M1qUUxq = D-V HY J-V swooy Sunesy A19[[eD pueln = J-y O
A INO NI-HAOW A¥¥VD ANVH WdO0E:T-INd00-T1
(skep NI-HAON WdO0:ZI-INVOE:L (SWOOIT1VE @) SWOOY T1V MOHS
¥ 343 1940) 000°0€ :douepUSNY patewnsy | (N TVARIV NVdS MOHS AVOE:L AY % 1J4OdS LVINLLTN TVANNY ,.19

dOVISNO SIION | Wd0011-Wd00:01
TVSUVAHAY iNFdOL | INdO0:01-Nd00:L
S3N10 LHOIT | WdOO:S-AV00:8

ISvDivaig WVO0E:6-INV00: ONILITN QIVOd ‘NSSV
Qf 9ouepusyy parewnsy | (L dn 1as JAV00:6-INVOE:8 GNOW | STIVINIALYIW ONIQTING % YN IN
14vdad S1S3NO Nd00:Z
DONILLIIN NdOE: 1-Wd00°Z1
HONNT WVSH 1L
SAARNIV 44V1S VST DONILIF SYOLOTAIA
Of :douepusyy pajewinsy | Oy NOOYAIVOd 40 QAVOL-IOV1d LHON FHL
ONIOANT AWNAAIXVL HSINIA-Nd 106 ONNd-d Od
NOLLVILSIONY AWYIAIXV.L Wd00:6-INV00:6 HDO0
NI-FAON NOE: L-INVOE:L (SWOOYT1VE @) SWOOY T1V MOHS
N TVYARRIV NVdS MOHS NVOE:L AY % LYOdS HIVINLLIN TVANNY 19
IOVLS NO SILON N00:11-INd00:01
‘HOYO M TVSYVIHTI Wd00:01-INd00:L

dN.L3s 1Lid
40D LHOI'T

HDO

Wv

S

(d4orvaa1a

DAS) NI-QvOT1 VI Wdog:s ONNA-d Od MOHS
N NI-VOTAILIAIT WJ00:9-INVO00: 11 JVHA AY¥ % 1JOdS ALVINLLTIN TVINNYV ;.19
NOISSIS ONISOT1O WS- INdSt:€ g-v T1ivd
Avadd NWdSY:€-INdOg €
SLNoOAvVIIg WJOE:€-INdST:T H-3 O ‘H-V 0¥
Avaad WdST:T-Nd00°T
SLNOJVIIg Wd00:Z-INdStT1 H-340‘H-VOY
HONNOT WASPTT-INVSP 11 g-v 11ve
SLNOAvVIId WVSH 1T-INVOE:01 H-9 0 ‘4-V O
Avadd WVOE0T-INVST:01
SLNOAvVIIg WVS1:01-INV00:6 H-4 0 ‘4-v 04
AvIdd WV00:6-INVSH:8
NOISSTS ONINIJO WVSP:8-INV00:8 a-v 11vd
8 :slouquyxg jo # NOLLVILSIOFNY WV00:8-INVOE:L NOLLONNA-TId INFAT STONARHIXT TVNOLLAIDXT
009 -eouepuany parewisy | Jv IVARRY LNAITO NWV00:9 04 ¥FLNID HLTVIH WNALDAdS
AV avad 191Ive Ad00:9-INd00: ¢ TIVH TV1IOTY ANOHJNAS 3D
FOVLS NO SFLON WdSt:01-INd00:01

TVSIVAHTY Wd00-01-IWd00:L

NAO00'S-INV00:8

__NVd ¥3194-19T1vE ¥D

900T — ATIdAM
HOVId SOAHO



90/S1/€ sw100y BUNIIIA 0TUO =0V NOW
-V J00HIAQ 1A = -V O

@-v wooIjed = q-V 1Ivd 'ary A19[[eD pueln =DOH
IeH ooﬂﬁﬁﬂoﬁom SOAR( = Ad m-< SWIO0Y w.a.uooz &OO~H0>O =HYV O
4 O~V slieH quxg = D~V HA J-V swooy Sunasy A19[[eD pueln = J-V O
1N0-IAON Wd00:01-INdS 1:9
LNO-IAON AWNYIAIXVL Nd00:$
SYNOH MOHS INd00:9-INV00:01
TIVH NI SYOLIGIHXT INV00:6 (SWOOYTIVE @) SWO0d T1V
(skep AOIAYAS HOUNHO 4499 MOHS
# 94} 42A0) 000 QE :9ouBpUSNY pajewinsy | [N TVYARRIV NVdS MOHS WVO0E:8 AM % 140dS ALVNLLTIN TVANNY ;.19
1n0 FIAON Nd00:8-Wd00:¥
9pS (9/€ 30 s8) IO Xod ¥# IONVINIOIITd Wd00:-INd00:T
FOVIS NO SdN WIVAM 61 HOAVI ‘NNS

I Z<m dd.LHd- ._.mq..;wm 49 |

NV N~ NdOE6

SATAVL SSAONTA SO INOE6 — INdSH8
NOISSHS YANNIA dSt'8 — INdOE:9
NOISSAS YINNIA 404 $400d WJ00:9
TVSYVAHTI Wd00:S
VI/01d 3aV( R (137 FONTITINOD
L DONILSAL INIAT N3JO Wd00:t — INV00:8 a-v 11vd JIHSYAAVAT ALV.LS TYNNNY 9002
19NONVE AWNFAIXVL 00 11-INdOE'S ONN4-d Od
SSV'ID NOILVIIALLYAD A¥O N00:S-INd00:Z1 HDO
SYNOH MOHS Wd00:6-WV00:6 (SINOOYTIVE ) SWO0d T1V
(skep TTIVH NI SYOLIGIHXH V008 MOHS
943 19A0) 000°0F :9ouBpusny parewinsy | (N TVARIIV NVdS MOHS WVOE:L AY¥ % 1JOdS TILVINLLIN TVANNY ;19
pee «(9/€ Jo s8) 320 xod €4 IONVINIOIIAd NOE:6-INdOE L
FOVIS NO SdN WIVM Nd00:9-INd00:S
€0 :(9/€ JO sB) 92O Xog # IONVINIOA4Ad Nd00:+~Nd00Z

__SOVISNO SdN WAVA | Wd0EZl i AG| _ NV4¥AI3EIATIVEND |

__81 HO¥VIN LV

Zommwmm OZHZMEO

ONILIIN SSANISNd d00-L — INd00:9
ONILVES ATIVH TVIOAdS WdOE:S
TVSIVIHTA WdO00-$ FONTIFINOD
rL dN 13IS/NIavol Nd00:T1 — AV00:8 a-v1ivd JIHSYIAVIT ILV.LS TVNNNV 900
NOLLJIOTY AWJIAIXVL Nd00:01-INd00:9
SYNOH MOHS Wd00-01-INV00:11 ONN:A-d Od
TIVH NI SYOLIgIHXE WV00:01 (SWOOYTTVE @) SWOOY T1V
(shep ONILFIN OLON WVO00: 1 1-INV00:6 1499 MOHS
¥ 943 19A0) 000°0E :3oUBpUSNY pajewusy | (N TVARDIV NVdS MOHS NV00:6 A % 1JOdS SLVINLLIN TYANNY 619
625 (9/€ 3O sB) 3250 X0od 1# JONVINIOJYdd WdO0E:6-INd0E L
FOVLS NO SNt WIvM Wd00:9-WdSt:¥
1 LOV- '7439d TOOHOS IWV00:11-INV00:01

m—O<._.m NO mn5 EM<3 .

_NV00:6-NV0E 8

“VZVid NVID AVAAY |

tﬁm BOAOME

WVIDOYdAINNIA Wd00:6-INdS 1:L
NOILJ3DTd Nd00-9

0001 :eouepuany pajewnnsy | (N dN13S VI - NV00:8 g-v 1Ivd MANNIA AVA NTOONIT
SYNOH MOHS WdJ00:01-INd00-¢

900C — ATAFIM
HOVId SOAH



90/S1/€ swooy Sunssy 20O =0-V NON
-V J00[I2A0 10ATY = 4-V 0¥

-V woodqeq = -V 1Ivd vary A1s[[en pueln = DO
[IEH 20UBULIOLISd SOAS( = A H-V Swooy] Sunsay Joo[IsA0 = H-V O

£ oV m%m Eaxm o-< HA -V wsoom wész E%o an m.< o

0C :99UEPUINY AJEWIST _ ONLLITN Nd00'S-AV00'S o VO | ~ OoOnnd

wun-ad vV 11vd HIMOYD
N YINNIG Wd00:01-INd00:C1 v T11vd A1LVIOLA0D ¥0d NOLLVIDOSSVY
TIVH LI9ITHX9 NMOd 3001 Wd00:s JdHa
N3dO SLIdIHXd Wd00:S-INV00:01 JrdHA
ONILFIN WVO00-01-INV00:6 aTtivd
TIVH NI S4OLI9IHX3 WV00:6 D9 HY
NOILVY1SIOTY Wd00:$-INV00:8 AAITIVO ANVID STIOLS IONFINFANOD
L HLIS-NO LNIITD AV00:8 4O NSSV IJW/NSSV Od.Ldd IN
HA NI HONN'T WdOO0: T-INVOE: 11 409
NAdO TIVH LIdIHXd Wd00:9-INV00:11 gvo
ONILITNW TVNNNV Wd00-Z1-INV00: 11 V HA
SASSVTO WV00:11-INV00:6 405
NOISSHS ONINIJO 2<oo 6-INV0¢E:8 gvo ANOD HO4L % LWOW
00§ :3duepuany vS«ESmm NIdO NOILVILSIOTY Mm.—.<>> qg& IN
ONILLIIN
1NO FJAON FTIIHIA Wd00t
¢ NOISSdS Wd00:t-INd00: 1
HONM1 Ndo¢:Tl
WOOY HSTJITI OL SdO Nd00:Z1
I NOISS3S WdJ00:ZT1-INVO0¢E 8
LSvIvadd WV00:8 404
(S 90UBPpUINY pajellnsy | 4V TVARIYY LNAITO WV00:L vV T11ve VSN STTVS YOLOW VLOAOL
p:\4 TVSIVIHN 2d1 WNd0E-£-INd00: 1 TIVH TV.LIDTA VIVO NIMHSYID V -ANOHIWAS 349
TIVH LIGIHX9 NMOd 1001 Wd00-8 g Ha
TIVH NI SYOLIdIHXd d00:3-Wd00:9 O€HE
4SOTD 31004 Nd00-9 JdH3
NOILIIOTd WdJ00:L-IWd00:S oungald ® O 1Ivd
ONILFFN IvVOod Wd00-+-Wd00-T aTivd
NOILVILSIOTY Wd00:5-INd00:Z1 AJITIVO ANVID
NOLLOMILSNOD dIHS FSINY¥D Wd00:$-INV00:6 Jr9Hd
SAD0A-NI-AVOT JOLIdIHXT Wd00:9-INV00:8 JrdHd STIOLS FONIINTIANOD
L JLIS-NO LNAI'TD AV00:8 4O NSSV IW/NSSV O¥.L3d IN
LIFIHXH d00:-8- INd00:¥ ANOD HO4L % LWOW

00 :99uEpUONY pIjelIlsy R COR 7S .:DSM :2

1z HOUVIN San

“INOOM(UVOE | INFWLAVAAA 0170d SAIaV ANVID

MOHS
8—200&..3«5 o) SWWOOY T1V Ad Q.H&Omw JLVIALLIN ..~<DZZ<

“INd00'S — 0O’

NOISSIS QAVMY WJO00:T - INV00°6
TVSAVIHTI WVO0EL HONTIFINOD
L vI/Old 3avr WV00:L a-v 1ivd dIHS¥IAVIT ALV.LS TVNNNY 9002

900¢C — AT ddMm
HOVId SOAET



90/S1/¢

-V wooted = -V 1Ivd
[TeH souewiIoNsd SOA( = AQ
IV S[IBHMqQUxg = O~V HY

Sw00y SuyasA J0TUOIN =J-V NOW

d-V 00H3AQ 134T = 4-V OY

vary A19[[eD pueln =9HOH

H-V swooy Sunasy J0o[HeA0 = H-V O
d-V swooy Sunaely A1sf[en pueid = J-V O

Lyl :(9/€ 3O sB) 32O Xog

LNO IAON
JONVINIOIIEd

N3dO ONILVIS

N340 AddOT

Z.mmO WMOOQ mn:w.—bo

ozﬁmmz.

Wd00:8-INd00:S
Wd00:$-Nd00:¢
Wd0g-T
Emoo.m

R >mmOm.>ZO~.EE>w MO

"~ ONILATN TVNOIOTY WVAL |

9Z HOWVIAUNAS |

HONVIIOLIIAd
N4dO ONILVHES
N340 A9901

Wd00- oﬁ Wd00:8
Wdot:L
Wd00:L
NdOE:9

VIVO NIMHSYTD
-> mem-\rZOmEEm MO

ST HOYVIN 'LVS

HONAT TIRRAN)

N3dO m&OOQ HaISLNO

rL 1No-avol WJ00:CI-INV00:8 9 H9 4O NSSV IA/NSSV O¥.L3d IN
1291 (9/€ J s8) 30JO Xog FONVIARIOIIdd Wd00-01-INd00:8
N3O ONILVES Wdot:L
NAdO Ag9dOT Emoo L VIVO NIMHSYID
AV

a5 LA AR |

TVSYVIHTI N3dO Wd00-:01-INd00:L
N340 ONILVIS NJO0E:9
NOILLIIOTI Nd00:6-Nd00:9 SHIGE0T YA TIIUNIVIA
NOILdIOTI-NIdO A9901 Wd00:S VIVO NIMHSYID
AV NI JAON Wd00-5-INd00: 1 Ad -A SdOd-ANOHJNAS dO
YIANNIA Wd00-01-Nd00:S NOLLVANNOA
N dN13s Wd00:S-INV00:8 v 1ivd HSIM V TAVIA -TIVE HSIM
TIVH L1I9IHX3 NMOd H001 Wd00-L
LNO-avol Wd00-L-Wd00-¢
STARNIY
2INVE dOOd SYINVETO AL (1} 274 OrdHe
N3dO S1IdIHXd Wd00:€-INV00:01 o9 Hd
TIVH NI SYOLIFIHXT WV00:6 e Hd
NOILVYLSIOTH Wd00-e-INVO0E:8 JgHd
TVARIEY afr WVO0tL:8 AYITTIVO ANVID
LSvivanid
1344N9 S.MO0TI0IF WV00:6-AV00:8 a-oT1ivd STIOLS IONFINFANOD
L ALIS-NO LNAI'TY WV00:8 JO NSSV IN/NSSV OJ.LAd IN
0T ‘sduepuany paewinsy | DA ONILIIN INd00:S-INV00:8 VO OORNIId
SASSVID WdOt:-£-INd00- 1 4-09
ONILIIN TVNINNY Wd00:¢-INd00: 1 gvo
1No avol Wd00:9-INd00: 1
HA NI HONM'T WdO00: [-IV00: 11
N3dO TTVH LIgIHXd Wd00: 1-INV00:01 V HE
SASSVIO WdO00:11-INV00:6 409
NOISS3S ONINGJO WV00:6-NV00:8 avo ANOD HO4IL % LWOW
006 ‘3JUBpUINY pjewidsy | 4V N3IdO NOILVILSIOTH OO0~ INVOE:L YV H3 AILYM TVIMY IN £THOAVIN ANHL

900C — ATAddM
HIOVId SOAEO



90/S1/€ swooy una3A 30MMOW =-V NOW
-V 300[12AQ 19ATY = -V Od

d-v woored = d-V TIVd vary A19[[en pueln = DO
[eH 2ourulIO)Idd SOAd = AQ H-V swooy Sunoasjp Joo[IAQ = H-V O
S O-V SlieH 1qxd = D-V HA d-V swooy Sunady A1s[[en pueln = J-V O
OOV 1LNOJvVIId Nd00-8-INV00:-8 ivVO 40O NOILLVONAd FHL 403 ‘NSSV 1IN
ADVE ATVL Nd0£:01-INdS0:01
¥L01 :(9/€ Jo se) 230 xog FJONVINIO193d Wd00:01-INd00-8 Ad MHIA 40 SINIOd
Emo,m h-sEoo n 15<m q<.:omm -IIIA q<o_mm<\_o.>zomm2>m mo _m IUM?.E LiE|
OZPmmE Zmoo 92<oo o
NWOOY LnoAvIId VO
NWOOY LNoAvIid 40D
Avid qavDo
NOO0Y LNoAvIId HOSO0 NTATTIHD ONNOA
NOISSIS TVIINID Nd00:8-INV00:8 a-d711vd 40 NOLLVONAad FHL YO 'NSSV I
(NOA JNVHL 3ONOQ)
q<mm<mmmm Zm_mo

WAOO:O1-NdOEL | _ IIA TVOISSVIO-ANOHAWAS ¥D | _0¢ HOWVI ¥NIHL

WOOY LNOAVIIL v O

WOOY LNOMVTYg Eges)
Avadd avo
OO LNOMVTHd HD0 NTIATHD ONNOA
NOISSIS TVYANTD Nd00:8-INV00:8 a-d11vd 40 NOLLVONAd FH1 ¥0Od 'NSSV IN
(NOA JNVHL YONOQ)

LYSHVAHAINAAO | W00 OVINAOE L B | 1 | LIS IR AR (0) LIS )

651 1-NV00'9 |

ONILLFTN Wd00:S-INd00:¢ HI1440 ATVMAIAS dNOAD WIHS NVOIHIIN
N LIFGIHX3 Nd00:S-INV00:8 g-vo TVIINGHD NOLLDY
N ONLLFIN WJ00:S-INV00:8 VO INI SWVTIATIIM
dn13s JOHH NTIGTIHO ONNOA
dn 13s Nd00:S-INV00:8 a-gT11vd 40 NOILLYONAd FHL JOd4 ‘NSSV IN
WOOY LNOAVIIL Wd9-INV00'8 vD NOLLNIANOD TVANNY 9007
dv LIFGIHX3 Wd9-INV00:8 V HY NSSV LV ANNOYD IN
TVSIVIHTA Wd00-01-NdOE:L

AV TVSAVIHTA Nd00:9-INdO¢:€ Ad HIA TVIISSVID-ANOHJWAS 49 6C HRIVIN "d3m

N Ll A Wd00:S-INV00-8 YO ONI SWVIATTIM
WOOY 1LNOxvIdd Wd00:L-INV00-8 HVO

NOISSIS TVIINID WdJ00:L-NV00'8 409 FONTIFANOD
dv ONILFIN Nd00:L-INV00:8 g0 LINZITO ANV TVIIATd MIVANVLS
WOOY LNOAVIId Wd00:S-INV00:8 Vo NOILNFANOD TVNNNY 900
iV dN13S LIgIHX3 Wd0:8-INV00:01 V HE NSSV ¥ILVM ANNOYO IN

TVSUVAHTY Wd00:9-NdOE'€
UTAOIONVHO WdOOTWVOOB | ____IIATVOISSVIO-ANOHAWAS ¥D | _8Z HONV ‘SNl

LTHIVIN 'NOW

HOVId SOAHT



90/S1/¢ Swooy uyasN 20O =0-V NOW
47V JOO[2AQ 12ATY = 4-V O

-V wooleq = d-V 1TIvVd a1y AI9[[ep) pueln =HOH
[TBH 9oUBWLIONS] SOAS( = AQ H-V swooy Sunasy Joo[saQ = H-V O

9 OV slleH 1qmxd = O-V HA

d-V swooy Sunasiy A1s[[en pueIn = J-V O

V00:Z1- INd00:9
WA00:9- INd00:T

dnigs

SYFINIONT ALNNOD 30 'NSSV "1LVN
el B R — SOl bR ARNSS00al

AT 3 e e
Nd00:6-Nd00:L
00:3 L

~ 1NOFAOW |
FONVIAYOIAd
sl idl]

NN YO0D NOSATIV GHL-
TIIH-NOLIN VNVIA | 9Tr¥dV ‘SuNHL

1IN0 GAON
FONVINYOLAd

Wd0£:01-Nd00-8 (AV1d 19dS0D)
| WNd00:$-INV00: \JOFANTAH

ONILIIN TYNOIOTY WVHL
dn 13s VO
dn 1as a-oT11ve
N di 138 d00:S-INV00'8 H-V O OOYIVH ¢ TRIdV 'NNS
IL ONLLIIN vV TIivd ONILFIN TVNOIOTI VL
WOOY LNOoAVIYE i-vo
WOOY 1NOAVIId -vO
NOISSIS TVIINTD a-d11vd
WOOY LNOAvIId HDO NTAQTIHD ONNOA
e): | LIdIHX3 Nd00:8 — NV00°8 JOHH 40 NOLLVINA3 FHL ¥0J ‘NSSV IN
AIVE ATVL WdO0£-01-NdS0:01
T8 :(9/€ JO s€) 235O x0g FONVINIOITd Wd00:01-INd00:8 Ad MHIA JO SINIOd
AV Lvadgdn INdOE:L-INd00:L TIVH TV.LIOTA A TVIISSVID-ANOHJWAS ¥D [ TRV "LVS
ONILLIFN Wd00:S-AV00:8 v Tivd ONILITNW TYNOIOTI INVIL
LIdIHX3 JHE
WOOY LNOoJvIId HDO
NOISSHS TVIINTD a-ga11vd
Avayd gvo
WOOY LNoJvVAId 4-295 NTAATIHD ONNOA

9007 — ATIddIM
HOVId SOAETO



90/S1/€

-V woodeqg = d-V 1T1Ivd
[[eH aoueuLIof1ad SOAd[ = A
OV SlleH Mqxg = O-V HA

SwI00Y SULSdA] S0IUOIN =(I-V NOW

d-V JOOHRAQ 19ATY = J-V OY

vary A1s[[en puein = Ho

H-V swooy 3unesjy JoO[19A0 = H-V O
d-V Swooy Junas A19][eD pueln = I-V O

oL LIgIHX3 Nd00:8 -INV00:8 V HY MOHS OO0 "00 NI@J3d NVA
NOISSIS TVHINTO rvo SYFINIONT ALNNOD 40 NSSV "1LVYN
N WOOY LNOoAVIIg Wd00:S-INV00:L 3-do ~OdXHd % NOLLNIANOD TVNNNY 9007
NI JAON WV00:Z1-INd00:€
TIVO ONILLOdS Wd00:Z-INV00:01
AV dRILS ISNOH WV00:01-INV00:8 Ad LNO NIAOW 01 TRIdV "NOW

9007 — A TFdM
HOVId SOA=




